@

SPECIALITY

RESTAURANTS LTD.

Morya Land Mark - 1, 4th Floor, B-25, Veera Industrial Estate, Off New Link Road, Andheri (W), Mumbai - 53
Tel No. (022) 62686700 Website. www.speciality.co.in

August 29, 2020

To,

General Manager, Vice President,

Listing Operations, Listng Compliance Department,

BSE Limited, National Stock Exchange of India Limited,
P.J. Tower, Dalal Street, Txchange Plaza’, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Mumbai - 400 00 1. Bandra (1), Mumbai - 400 051.

Scrip Code: 534425 Scrip Code: SPECIALITY

Dear Sir/ Madam,

Ref: Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”).

Sub: Submission of the Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

The Twenty First Annual General Meetng (“AGM”) of the Company scheduled to be
held on Tuesday, September 22, 2020 at 11.00 a.m. (IS'1) through Video Conferencing
(VCO) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the businesses, set out in the
Notice convening the AGM in compliance with all applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Rules made thereunder read with Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA). Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, Circular Nos.
14/2020 and 17/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 respectively, the Securities
and Lixchange Board of India (Listing Obligatons and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”) and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMDI1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020.

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, we enclose herewith a copy of the
Annual Report along with Notice of the AGM and other Statutory Reports for the
financial year ended March 31, 2020, which is also being sent through electronic mode
to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Registrar
and "Iransler Agent/ Depositories.

Registered Office : ‘Uniworth House’ 3A Gurusaday Road, Kolkata - 700019.
CIN: L55101WB1999PLC090672. Tel. No. (91 33) 2283 7964/ 65/66. Fax No. (91 33) 2280 9282.
Email: corporate@speciality.co.in.



SPECIALITY
RESTAURANTS LTD.

Morya Land Mark - 1, 4th Floor, B-25, Veera Industrial Estate, Off New Link Road, Andheri (W), Mumbai - 53
Tel No. (022) 62686700 Website. www.speciality.co.in

The Annual Report for the financial year 2019-20 along with Notice of the 21* AGM 1s
uploaded on the website of the Company at www.speciality.co.in.

You are requested to kindly take the same on record.
Kindly acknowledge the receipt.

Thanking you,

Yours sincerely,

For Speciality Restaurants Limited

-~ -

R ety

Name: Avinash Kinhikar
Designation: Company Secretary & Legal Head
Encl: As above.

Registered Office : "Uniworth House’ 3A Gurusaday Road, Kolkata - 700019,
CIN: L55101WB1999PLC090672. Tel. No. (91 33) 2283 7964/ 65/66. Fax No. (91 33) 2280 9282.
Email: corporate@speciality.co.in.



S

SPECIALITY

RESTAURANTS LTD.

ANNUAL
REPORT

plople




CONTENTS

OVERVIEW

Our Mission
Curtain Raiser

Chairman & Managing Director’s
Perspective

Powered By Our Brands
What the Numbers Say
Board of Directors
Brand Presence
Company Information
Notice

Directors' Report

Management Discussion and Analysis

17
19
22
24
25
42
61

SPECIALITY

MAKING YOU

RESTAURANTS LTD. | FEEL SPECIAL

Report on Corporate Governance
Standalone Financial Statements
Auditor's Report

Balance Sheet

Statement of Profit and Loss
Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

70

91
98
99
100
101
103

Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditor’s Report
Financial Statements

Statement in Form AOC-1

131
136
170

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 '



OUR MISSION

brought alive by care and personalized service in a warm, vibrant environment,
that makes everybody feel special.

SPECIALITY | MAKING YOU
RESTAURANTsS LTD. | FEEL SPECIAL

CURTAIN

RAISER

As we stepped into the 26th year of our operations it brought in new challenges and together with it new
opportunities. Brand refresh of the existing ones, giving birth to new ideas, new creations and new formats
all added a new fillip providing a much needed platform for our future growth.

We all know that food is the basic need of every human being and we strive to meet that need in the most
satisfying way. More than three thousand two hundred associates at Speciality Restaurants strive to create
a special dining experience on the table for all our guests and stake holders, sharing joy and happiness in
their lives.

Speciality Restaurants Ltd. as a public entity, is still the largest chain of fine dining restaurants in the country
with outlets across [ndia and also beyond our shores in UAE, Bangladesh and Tanzania. Our flagship brand
Mainland China serves authentic cuisine of Chinese provinces while it’'s younger offshoot in the form of
Asia Kitchen and Gong serves modern pan-Asian cuisine in a semi-casual dining formats.

The group’s power brands include Oh! Calcutta serving authentic 300-year-old flavour of Calcutta is one of
the most respected and awarded, Sigree Global Grill offering unlimited serving of grills of the world over live
grillers on each table and Sweet Bengal serving authentic Bengali sweets made with pure cow’s milk by
artisans from Bengal have been the driving force, In its portfolio the group also has a casual dining formats
in the form of Café Mezzuna, an all-day bar and kitchen and Hoppipola as a playful bar and kitchen for the
young millennials which lends variety.

The new entrants in this year are in the form of Riyasat serving ‘contemporary Indian cuisine’ while
Episode One, UDP (Urban Deccan Pub), HAY and BARissh in the ‘fun dining’ genre, holds a lot of promise
for the future. Serving various high-end spirits prepared by international mixologists along with wide range
of quick bites and other value offerings targeted primarily to a younger audience who are redefining the
traditional dining.

Other brands of the group are Haka, Flame & Grill, Machaan, Zoodles, Jungle Safari, Dariole (confectionery)
which are silent performers and forms a part of our wholesome basket of offerings to guests.
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CHAIRMAN
& MANAGING

ANJAN ,
CHATTERJEE DIRECTOR'S
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING PERSPECTIVE

DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders,

[t gives me great pleasure to share with you,
your Company’s performance for the financial
year 2019-20.

The year has been a challenging one — not just for India,
but for the world. The unprecedented fallout of the Covid
19 pandemic has had a significant impact on the hospitality
industry. Despite this, | remain optimistic primarily because
of the judicious measures we have taken to stem the impact of
the pandemic.

Your Company continues to place its mission at the heart of the
business based on the strong belief that brands with purpose grow;
companies with purpose last; and people with purpose thrive.

[n the year under review, your company achieved a turnover of over Rs.367 crores, registering a marginal growth
of 3.35% as against the previous year. This was achieved despite the headwinds that the economic environment
continued to throw up, creating hurdles to unfettered growth. Through this period, your Company retained its
strong focus on innovation, by creating novel offerings; by investing in relevant technology to enhance customer
experience; through intelligent menu engineering; by renegotiating rentals for increased reduction; and by taking
appropriate measures to reduce raw material costs.

Staying responsive to opportunities, even during this period, your Company has signed up for the second
restaurant at Dubai with the existing franchisee. This is due to the tremendous response and ensuing demand
for Mainland China Asia Kitchen. Additionally, the St Regis Hotel at Doha has signed an operating contract with
your Company for the Indian cuisine restaurant — Riyasat.
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As you are aware that in the year under review, your company was on track with all its growth
plans till the month of February 2020, till the disruption due to the Covid-19 pandemic which began
to spread in March 2020. With the hospitality industry among the worst affected
especially in the United Kingdom, your company has taken the judicious step of deferring the
launch of its first restaurant in London till next year. With the same perspective, your company’s
expansion plans in the US market have also been placed on hold as of now.

Considering that the impact of the pandemic is likely to be felt for the next several months, your
company has been diligently working to reduce all major fixed costs. These include the expenses
under all heads that fall within Restaurant operations. This is being done through re-negotiations
of Rentals/CAM/AMC and annual contracts of raw material suppliers and relevant parties in order
to neutralize the impact.

We have reviewed the existing contracts judiciously, negotiated and sought relief during the
lock down period with property owners wherever possible and plan to exit those that do not fit
into our scheme of things. Your Company has undertaken a stringent exercise of rationalisation of
restaurant operations including change in service design, contactless ordering as well as
manpower requirement.

The pandemic has also imposed incremental operating costs on the business. While we foresee
impact on the profitability for the FY 20-21; it is difficult to assess the exact quantum at this stage.
A redeeming factor is that your Company doesn’t have any debt on its book. Hence there is no
impact pertaining to debt obligations on the Company.

A quick response

One outcome of the pandemic has been the increase in the trend of deliveries and takeaway
services. Recognising this as a long term opportunity, your company responded rapidly. During
the lockdown period in keeping with Government directives, some kitchens in select and approved
locations were kept in operation for deliveries and takeaway services. Going forward, your compa-
ny’s food delivery and take away operations will remain operational. Additionally, we are in the
process of identifying more locations at our existing kitchens/outlets to make them operational.
We are also making a foray into the cloud kitchen segment to tap the existing markets to optimise
the recall value and brand equity of our various restaurants.

Recognising the potential and having been able to stabilise at the back-end, your Company is also

getting into the sale of its proprietary sauces under the brand 'Mainland China' in the B2C segment
through e-commerce platform to generate higher volumes and revenues.
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Your company has always placed a great emphasis on hygiene and quality. During the pandemic,
we have added even more stringent measures to reassure our customers of the quality of the food and
the hygiene. This has resulted in your company experiencing higher customer preference due to the
unwavering faith and confidence in our established brands. The safety of our employees and
customers remains our highest priority. Your Company had already moved to ‘work from home’ policy
for its corporate office, thereby significantly reducing risk to them in this period. In the kitchens,
a stringent ‘social distancing’ policy is being adhered to, keeping all employees safe. Various other
proactive measures have been initiated viz. best in class sanitising with Virex treatment everyday
through Johnson Diversey, checking temperatures of all staff and tagging all delivery packets with
the recordings, frequent hand washing as an SOP etc.

We have seen significant business impact due to multiple lockdowns, restrictions and social
distancing norms and the uncertainty of the situation makes it difficult for us to anticipate the extent
of the impact. However, we are confident of bouncing back as soon as the external environment
returns to normalcy.

Restarting dine-in operations of the restaurants and bars is a decision that is governed by the Central
Government and respective State Government directives under the Disaster Management Act with
regulatory strictures and guidance. These will be adhered to and hence our schedule for reopening
key restaurants is dependent on it.

Thanks to 25 years of unparalleled brand equity, your company is well entrenched in peoples’ minds
and hearts as delivering quality food and dining experience. With well established brands for takeaway
and delivery, your company continues to be in a position of strength to overcome this crisis
and capitalise on future growth opportunities.

Staying responsive to the ever blowing winds of change, your Company is adapting strategies
to the changing business environment and responding suitably to fulfill the needs of its customers.
Keeping our ear close to the ground, we are closely monitoring the external situation and restrictions
imposed and phase wise relaxations being granted by the regulatory authorities from time to time.

[ would like to take this opportunity to thank each and every stakeholder who has reposed their faith
in us, employees, partners, customers and all stakeholders for their commitment and service to
Speciality Restaurants. | would also like to thank the Board of Directors for their unstinted support.
Most importantly, | would like to thank you, shareholders, for your overwhelming trust, support and
confidence in Speciality Restaurants Limited.

Warm Regards,

Anjan Chatterjee
(Chairman and Managing Director)
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OUR
FOUNDATION,
BUILT ON BRANDS

Every brand of ours has created its own niche. They operate and constitute an important
aspect of our strategic roadmap over the next several years. Our pre-defined rules and
standards have allowed a smooth run for all the franchise and continuing this trend will inch
us closer to near and long-term goals and success.
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IF IT'S CHINESE, 1T'S
PMAINLAND
CHINAL

Beyond the Great Wall lies the kingdom of Mainland China,
a place where all dreams come true. Today, this flagship brand of
Speciality Restaurants has a countrywide presence in the form of
37 outlets across India serving customers with authentic Chinese
cuisine. To its credit it has remained one of the most favored and
popular Chinese fine dining restaurant chain catering to the
[ndian taste buds over 26 years.

The overwhelming popularity has taken the brand to international
destinations viz. Tanzania and Bangladesh thereby earning a
reputation of serving the finest Chinese cuisine suited for the
[ndian palette outside China, to discerning gourmets all over the
world. [t enjoys top of the mind brand recall and sustained loyalty
of its customers over the years. [t has won ‘Best Chinese’ —
Times food and night life awards in all cities over the years.

(SDSPECIAL[TY MAKING YOU
RESTAURANTs LTpD. | FEEL SPECIAL

FLAGSHIP
BRANDS ASIA KITCHEN

This is a refreshed new semi-casual format of the
mother brand in a relaxed ambience serving
exciting Pan-Asian cuisine from selections of Thai,
Japanese, Malaya, Myanmar, Singapore, Hong Kong
and of course China.

After receiving tremendous response in Mumbai,
Pune, Kolkata, Bangalore and Chennai, the first
outlet internationally is in operation at Burjuman
Mall in Dubai, UAE. This exciting new format with
live kitchen and innovative take on street food is
creating ripples in the dining circles and receiving
franchise offers internationally.
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Ok' c,onﬂ‘o,

——— The Taste of Joy ——

Onh! Calcutta, with 9 operating outlets across
the country, is an ode, a celebration to the
romantic city of Calcutta and its gastronomic
delights. Here the cuisine is quintessential
Bengali offering a diverse and traditional fare
of authentic Bengali cuisine that is reminiscent
of Kolkata as it once was. Contemporary yet
evocative. Modern yet traditional.

With a rare cuisine that celebrates Calcutta’s
melting pot of cultures, Oh! Calcutta’s appeal
reaches out to food connoisseurs far beyond
Bengali’s looking for their home flavours. It’s a
resurrection of 300-year-old recipes well
researched to give a contemporary expression
in the form of grilled and steamed specialties,
deftly balancing the traditional

flavours with amalgamation of authentic ingredients and spices to appeal to a global audience. Keeping the
elegance and creativity of the cuisine at heart, the brand is constantly pushing the envelope for the newer
experiences of traditional flavours. It has won all foodie awards over the years and has now also been
recognized as ‘Best Regional Cuisine Award’ by Eazydiner Foodies.

SPECIALITY | MAKING YOU
REsSTAURANTs LTD. | FEEL SPECIAL

CORE BRANDS _ oSieree

Sigree Global Grill has emerged as a popular brand having
promoted the concept of live grills in the style of Brazilian
Churrascaria or Japanese Hibachi on each table, with
display kitchen, interactive cooking with skillful displays
by master chefs inspired by changing taste-buds adding
vibrancy to the whole ambience.

The menu features a mélange of fresh, unlimited grilled
flavours from all around the world like Mediterranean,
Oriental, Spanish, Mexican and of course Indian Cuisines
at all-inclusive attractive price points.
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hoPpiPola

Literally meaning ‘jumping in puddles’ in lcelandic, Hoppipola is an
embodiment that you don’t need to be young to have fun.
Patrons are encouraged to participate in Beer Pong, Chuggathons, read
from a quirky book section, play video and board games among other fun
stuff.

Hoppipola offers ample contemporary flavours such as finger food and
bar nibbles. Innovative mocktails also add to the funky menu. Hoppipola
offers a fun filled experience to the young-at-heart who constitute the
majority of a growing market of young and independent diners. So much
so that it has now caught the fancy of diners even in far flung Tanzania.

SPECIALITY | MAKING YOU
REsTAURANTS LTD. | FEEL SPECIAL

Heavenly sweets

CAFE
It has proved to be the
favourite Bengali sweet M E Z Z U N A
destination. The sole ALL DAY RESTOBAR

credit for this goes to
the innovative and tra-
ditional spread of Ben- Café Mezzuna is an all-day semi casual
gali  Sweets created dining restaurant. It serves Modern

o s
from pure cow’s milk by pyropean cuisine with selections from

‘karigars’ from West Bengal who literally crafts each ltahap, Mediterranean, ! Morocean,
and every sweet. With 26 outlets it is the only chain  SPanish, French flavours with a tastefu
serving authentic Bengali sweets and Bengali snacks |y designed bar menu. lts unanimous
in Mumbai and buoyed by the tremendous success the admiration made it to win ‘Best ltalian
Company has now started expanding and spreading its  in Premium Dine in’ by The Telegraph
sweetness in it’s hometown—- Kolkata with the opening  and ‘Times food and night life awards’
of 2 outlets as of now. from TOL group.
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gong

modern asian 9
GONG transports diners to a new
level of happiness with its high

energy contemporary ambience
with a take on traditional Japanese

temple architecture and diverse e —— ) I". i &
Asian flavours that are prepared M A e : .rr- g@lﬂ]@ ‘1
using western cooking techniques & = o e et

and presentations. It takes you on a : i~ EE}%:J-“HE E
journey through the mysterious ] - - l»li ,'E"- i

culinary traditions of the Far-East.
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HAKA

Tasty Tasty Chinese

Devised for the guest on the go, Haka is
ideal for those seeking to shop or watch a
movie and have a quick bite. Featuring
modern Chinese cuisine in small plates
including dim sums and quick meal
at comfortable prices, typically found on
Hong Kong and Shanghai streets.

The contemporary ambience of each Haka
restaurant is created with red walls and
modern impressionist artwork emphasizing
efficiency and functionality in layout.
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Sigree promises to take diners to
that erstwhile era laid-back times
of cooking over open ‘slow fire’,
Offering authentic I[ndian cuisine
slow cooked over a charcoal flame
with flavours from North Western
[ndia using fresh, pure flavours and
ingredients. The ambience at
‘Sigree’ has a unique character with
modern Indian décor in bronze and
red colours. ‘Sigree’ has won the
coveted ‘Rocheston — Distinguished
Restaurant’ award.

With modern and vibrant ambience
offering ranging from a vast selection
of kebabs seasoned with special spices
Flame & Grill offers grilled cuisine
from all over the world.

AR AR R RN o
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DARIOLEE

Bakery & Confectionery

Dariole is a cosy, affectionate neighbourhood
confectionary and café, where the city’s best
croissants, buns, puffs, wraps, cakes, cookies,
pastries and breads are born everyday.
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Royalty Inspired Indian Dining

[Infused with ‘contemporary’ Indian cuisine
— Riyasat is a story woven through royal
celebrations and victories that is inspired
from the stately homes of the royal
families of the 19th century. The cuisine is
inspired from the North-western frontiers
that is vibrant, robust and encompasses
the healthier culinary techniques and
dining experiences to blend in with the
changing time and trends.

[t also boasts of crafted beverages curated
by mixologists, embracing the past with
twists on classics — creating a theatrical
mood where you can sit and just immerse
into the experience. It has won ‘Best
Progressive Indian — Casual Dining’ award
of Times food and night life and ‘Best
[Indian’ awarded by The Telegraph.
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NEW BRANDS

[t is a one of it’s kind experiential bar and dining space in Kolkata and now the recently
opened one at Powai, Mumbai. Episode One is a modern day take on the Gymkhanas and
Clubs of yesterday, thereby making it a space for the conventional and unconventional
people of today — a space meant for everyone.

With state-of-the art interiors, Episode is divided into 4 experiences — The TAPROOM
(the first of its kind in the country), The Library, The Chambers, The Veranda and The
Ballroom. Offering a unique and bespoke range of cocktail tanks as well as world cuisine
with satisfactory palettes from Indian, Turkish, Continental, Thai & Asian food. Episode

One is defined by everything it isn’t.
ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 '




A re-discovered bar transformed by the millennial
into high energy conversational and drinking space.
[t has a light-filled and inviting look — a place you can
dine at during the day and which turns into your
favourite resto-bar in the evening.

HAY comprises comfort food recipes with local twists
satisfactory palettes ranging from Indian, ltalian,
Mexican, Lebanese, Seafood and Tibetan food. The
menu has an enjoyable blend of global desi cuisine.
The drinks menu is quite expansive wherein the
cocktails make use of the freshest of fruits, spices
and liqueurs to achieve a perfect harmony of

flavours. It has its presence in Begumpet, Hyderabad.

SPECIALITY | MAKING YOU
REsTAURANTS LTD. | FEEL SPECIAL
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NEW BRANDS

MAKING YOU
FEEL SPECIAL

Urban Deccan Pub

UDP celebrates the soul of Udupi, the warmth of a classic pub and
the vibrancy of Bengaluru. The space focuses on simple and familiar
gusto that bodes well with its modernized ambience. Surrounded
with influences of Deccan flora and fauna and community seating
exposed to natural sunlight, UDP also offers very positive day vibe.

Specially curated comfort food inspired from regions of Karnataka,
Kerala, Tamil Nadu & Andhra Pradesh, the menu is a mix of classics
and innovative dishes adapted for a neighbourhood bar setting. The
signature cocktails make use of syrups and shrubs made from fresh
South I[ndian ingredients, thereby providing the right balance of
flavors and freshness. Inspired from the filter coffee culture in
South India, UDP’s Cold Brewtails uses overnight brewed coffee to
deliver the right kick of caffeinated cocktails.
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A place that is vibrant and chic, with stunning
decor, a splash of pop colours that spell youth-
ful and comes a breath of fresh air... celebrate
all things millennial with a touch of “ishh”.
BARishh — the newest brand from the house of
Speciality Restaurants — is for all day, any
mood. With striking blue walls with large and
small butterfly murals, the 120-seater also
makes use of elements like soothing green and
quirky writings on the wall, giving BARishh a
balanced look and feel.

The entire food menu is derived out of Indian
ingredients with a western touch to it making
global in presentation. Gin has been having its
moment for the last couple of years and the
moment is only here to stay. Created by inter-
national mixologists, highlights of BARishh are
not just cocktails but innovative gin infusions
featuring on it.

BARishh is for the modern Indian youth who
loves living in the grey areas of life where it’s
very non-committal.. a zone we all live in.

SPECIALITY | MAKING YOU
REsTAURANTS LTD. | FEEL SPECIAL
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WHAT THE

NUMBER SAY

Total Income From Operations and Outlets
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WHAT THE

NUMBER SAY
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BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

Anjan Chatterjee
Chairman & Managing Director

With a Bachelor's Degree in Science, Mr. Anjan Chatterjee is the Promoter-Director of the Company. He
has topped it with a Diploma in Hotel Management, Catering Technology and Applied Nutrition and his
experience spans over 30 years in the advertising and hospitality industry. With a hands-on management
style, he is responsible for spearheading the company's expansion strategy.

Indranil Ananda Chatterjee
Deputy Managing Director

Holding a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce and a Post Graduate Diploma in Business Management with
over 30 years of experience in finance and marketing, he brings to the table his well-rounded management
skills and strategic inputs for the Company's growth and expansion plans.

Suchhanda Chatterjee
Whole-time Director

She is also the Promoter Director of the company and holds a Bachelor's Degree in Arts with over 20
years of experience in the hospitality industry. She can be accredited with bringing uniformity in the
ambience of each restaurant under a brand and creating a unique identity for each brand esp. the flagship
brands under the Speciality Restaurants umbrella.
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Avik Chatterjee
Whole-time Director

He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from Kingston University, London.
During the period of his study at London had worked on the Project of Lounge Bars.

He is Head — Innovation and New Formats of the Company with effect from November 2015 and
spearheading the Company’s launch of several new brands viz. POH (Progressive Oriental House),
Hay and the latest being Episode One.

Now inducted as a Director, he brings to the table conceptuals of new brands, with detailed analysis on
prevailing trends in market after constant research and development on food and beverage and identifi-
cation of new markets and customer needs / preferences.

Dushyant Rajnikant Mehta
Independent Director

He has over 25 years of experience in marketing, advertising and sales with a focus on brand building,
strategy and account planning. Having majored in marketing during his MBA, he has launched and built
several FMCG and media brands at a national level. In his previous assignments he headed Contract
Advertising and Lintas in Mumbai; he also led the strategic and account planning team at Clarion
Advertising. Later he turned entrepreneur, playing a key role in building Repro India, one of [ndia’s
largest printing & publishing company and in taking it public. He has helped build the multi-million-
dollar brand Cello. He has also conceptualized and launched national programmes like the Bournvita
Quiz Contest, Say Cello not Hello! amongst others. As a long-time member of the advertising
fraternity, Mr. Mehta has served on the jury for the prestigious ABBY Awards and also taken sessions
on Management at various institutions. He also founded and is the Chairman of Quadrum Solutions,

a uniquely positioned content company with global clients.

SPECIALITY | MAKING YOU
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BOARD OF

DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Ullal Ravindra Bhat
Independent Director

He is one of India's well- known investment managers having managed foreign institutional investments
in Indian equities for more than two decades. He is M.Sc. from Indian Institute of Technology, Kanpur
and has attended advanced courses on Finance at the Harvard Business School, Boston and Indian
[nstitute of Management, Ahmedabad. He is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Bankers, London. He
is a respected commentator in the electronic and print media.

Rakesh Pandey

Independent Director

He holds a degree in B. Tech. (Hons.) Chemical Engg. from T BHU Varanasi and Global Program on
Management Development from University of Michigan. He is a well-rounded professional with
multi-functional, multi domain experience, and an entrepreneurial and challenge orient mindset.

He has worked in the industries ranging from Chemicals, FMCG, Healthcare and Wellness, Retail,
Start Up in the roles ranging from Manufacturing, Projects, Chief of HR and Quality, Business Head
and CEOQ, President among others. He has strong belief in power of HR linked Business Strategy and
Innovation led growth. A CXO Coach, certified from Neuro Leadership Institute USA, on Brain Based
Results Coaching System. He is also actively engaged in mentoring start-ups.

Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay

Independent Director

She is the Founder Director of KafeHR, a boutique strategic HR Consultancy Firm, with profound
expertise in Leadership Development, Talent Management, Performance Management and HR
Processes.

In a career spanning over two decades Dr. Bandyopadhyay has worked with large multi national
companies as well as multiple small to midsize companies.

Her way of looking at HR from a business perspective truly sets her apart from others. With her
expertise in the field of HR management as well as a keen ability to understand business dynamics,
she is able to provide strategic advice that is practical and implementable, helps the organisation
overcome obstacles and stimulate growth thus taking the organisation further.

She has a Doctorate in Applied Psychology from Kolkata University and an Executive MBA from SP Jain
[nstitute of Management & Research, Mumbai. She is a certified coach and is also certified in multiple
competency frameworks and psychometric instruments.
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SPECIALITY | MAKING YOU
REsTAURANTS LTD. | FEEL SPECIAL

PRESENCE

Brands & Number of Outlets as on March 31, 2020

B Mainland China & Mainland China Asia Kitchen
& Asia Kitchen & Bar
B Oh! Caleutta
m Sigree & Sigree Global Grill
W Haka, Haka Xpress and Haka - Asia Bowl
B Machaan
® Elame & Grill
B Kix
B Café Mezzuna
Hoppipola
B Zoodles (Asian Street Wok)
B GONG
HAY
¥ lungle Safari
® Episode One
Urban Deccan Pub (UDP)
¥ Calcutta Canteen
Riyasat
BARishh
Cloud Kitchen
Kazi - Biryani, Chaap and Kababs
Daricle
Sweet Bengal (Confectionary)
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BRAND

PRESENCE

Brands

Mainland China and Mainland China Asia Kitchen

Onh! Calcutta

Sigree and Sigree Global Grill

Haka, Haka Xpress and Haka Asia Bowl
Machaan
Flame & Grill

Café Mezzuna

Hoppipola

Kix

Zoodles (Asian Street Wok)
Gong-Modern Asian

HAY

Jungle Safari

Episode One

Calcutta Canteen

Urban Deccan Pub (UDP)
Riyasat

BARishh

Cloud Kitchen

Kaazi - Biryani, Chaap and Kababs
Dariole

Sweet Bengal (Confectionary)

MAKING YOU
FEEL SPECIAL

SPECIALITY

RESTAURANTS LTD.

Key Cities

20 cities in India and One in Dhaka,

Bangladesh, one in Dar es Salaam, Tanzania
and one in Dubai

Mumbai, Kolkata, Delhi, Bengaluru, Gurgaon
and Hyderabad

Pune, Kolkata, Mumbai, Hydrabad,
Bengaluru, Chennai, Ranchi and
Dar-es-Salaam, Tanzania

Kolkata and Mumbai
Ranchi and Howrah
Hyderabad and Kolkata
Kolkata

Bengaluru, Chennai, Pune, Kolkata, Ranchi,
Hyderabad and Mumbai

Kolkata

Mumbai

Pune

Hyderabad

Kolkata

Kolkata and Mumbai
Kolkata

Bengaluru

Kolkata

Kolkata

Mumbai

Kolkata

Kolkata

Mumbai and Kolkata
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Ullal R. Bhat

Anjan Chatterjee
Dushyant Mehta
Rakesh Pandey
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Chairman & Managing Director
Whole-time Director
(Director-Interior & Design)
Deputy Managing Director
(designated and appointed
w.e.f. February 3, 2020)
Whole-time Director
(appointed as Executive Director —
Innovation and New Formats
w.e.f. February 3, 2020)
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Independent Director
(appointed w.e.f. February 3, 2020)

Chairman

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Dushyant Mehta
Anjan Chatterjee
Indranil Chatterjee

Chairman

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Dushyant Mehta
Ullal R. Bhat
Rakesh Pandey

Chairman

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Dushyant Mehta
Suchhanda Chatterjee
Ullal R. Bhat

Management Team
Anjan Chatterjee
Suchhanda Chatterjee
Indranil Chatterjee
Avik Chatterjee

Phiroz Sadri
Rajesh Dubey
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Avinash Kinhikar
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Chairman

Chairman & Managing Director
Director-Interior & Design
Deputy Managing Director
Executive Director —
Innovation and New Formats
Chief Operating Officer
Chief-of-Cuisine

Executive Director- Finance & CFO

Company Secretary & Legal Head

Statutory Auditors

Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

B2, 402-B, Marathon Innova,
Off Ganpatrao Kadam Marg,
Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400013

Secretarial Auditors

GMJ & Associates

Company Secretaries

3rd & 4th Floor,

Vaastu Darshan “B”,

Above Central Bank of India,
Azad Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai - 400 069

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents
Link Intime India Private Limited

C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg,
Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400 083.

Bankers

State Bank of India

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
HDFC Bank Limited

ICICI Bank Limited

Registered Office
Uniworth House,
3A, Gurusaday Road,
Kolkata 700 019.

Corporate Office

Morya Landmark I, 4" Floor,

B-25, Veera Industrial Estate,

Off. New Link Road,
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CIN: L55101WB1999PLC090672
Website: www.speciality.co.in
E-Mail: corporate@speciality.co.in
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 21 Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) of the members of SPECIALITY RESTAURANTS LIMITED (the
“Members” and such Company, the “Company”) will be held on Tuesday, September 22, 2020 at 11.00 a.m. (IST), through Video
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) facility to transact the businesses as set out hereunder:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020, together
with the Report of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) and the Auditor’s Report thereon.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2020, together with the Auditor’s Report thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Suchhanda Chatterjee (DIN: 00226893), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, has offered
herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

Re-appointment of Mr. Anjan Chatterjee (DIN: 00200443) as Managing Director of the Company:
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) (the “Companies Act”) read
with Schedule V and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time
to time, Regulation 17(6)(e) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to the approval of the Central Government as may be required and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Companies Act from a Member, proposing
his candidature for the office of Director, the Company hereby approves the re-appointment of Mr. Anjan Chatterjee, (DIN: 00200443)
as the Managing Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of three years with effect from December
27, 2020 upto December 26, 2023, on the following remuneration, perquisites and benefits as approved by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (hereinafter called “NRC”) at their Meeting held on June 29, 2020 and the Board of Directors (the “Board”)
at their Meeting held on July 23, 2020 on such other terms and conditions as set out in the explanatory statement:

Remuneration:
(i) Basic Salary:-

In the range of ¥ 2,00,000/- to ¥ 7,00,000/- per month. In the first year the basic salary shall be ¥ 2,50,000/- per month. Thereafter,
the Board shall fix annual increments every year within the above specified limit in compliance with Schedule V of the Companies
Act. The first increment shall be due from December 27, 2021.

(ii) Allowances:
(i)  House Rent Allowance ¥ 1,25,000/- per month.
(i) Additional Allowance ¥ 1,25,000/- per month.

The above allowances together with such other allowances as and when decided with such increments as may be fixed by the
Board shall not exceed 100 percent of the basic salary mentioned in (i) above.

(iii) Perquisites:
In addition to the aforesaid salary and allowances, Mr. Anjan Chatterjee shall be entitled to gratuity, mediclaim policy for himself
and his family, personal accident insurance for himself and other benefits in accordance with the rules of the Company. The
monetary value of the perquisites shall be valued as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended and the rules
made thereunder wherever applicable and in the absence of any such provision, perquisites shall be valued at actual cost.

(iv) Incentive Remuneration:

Such incentive remuneration not exceeding 100% of Basic Salary to be paid at the discretion of the Board annually, based on
certain performance criteria and such other parameters as may be considered appropriate from time to time.
(v) Commission:
Over and above the remuneration aforesaid, he shall be eligible for commission on the Net Profits as the Board may fix every year.
Provided that the total remuneration including perquisites, incentive remuneration and commission shall be within the overall
limits laid down under Section 198 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act.
(vi) Sitting Fees:
Mr. Anjan Chatterjee shall not be entitled to any sitting fee for attending meetings of the Board and/or Committee(s) thereof.
In addition to the remuneration specified above, Mr. Anjan Chatterjee may also draw remuneration from other companies, in the
capacity of a managerial personnel, provided that the total remuneration (including basic salary, allowances, perquisites, incentive
remuneration and commission including the remuneration received from other companies) shall be within the overall limits laid down
under the Companies Act.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT during the tenure of Mr. Anjan Chatterjee as Managing Director of the Company, if the Company has no
profits or if its profits are inadequate in any financial year, Mr. Anjan Chatterjee shall be eligible to draw the remuneration by way of
salary, allowances, perquisites, incentive remuneration and commission from the Company as well as from other companies within
overall limits prescribed under Section I, Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said remuneration
in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Anjan Chatterjee subject to the limits prescribed under the Companies
Act;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any Committee thereof that may be authorized by the Board in this behalf, be and is hereby
authorised to take such steps and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and settle any doubts, difficulties, issues and questions in
this regard as may be considered necessary, proper, desirable and expedient to give effect to this resolution;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Indranil Chatterjee, Deputy Managing Director and Mr. Avinash Kinhikar, Company Secretary & Legal
Head be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds and actions, as may be necessary to give effect to the above
resolution, including filing the various forms required to be filed under the Companies Act electronically from time to time with the
Registrar of Companies, West Bengal or such other concerned authorities.”
Designating and Appointment of Mr. Indranil Chatterjee (DIN: 00200577) Whole-time Director, as Deputy Managing Director of the
Company:
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), (the “Companies Act”) read
with Schedule V and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time
to time, the Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the approval of the Central Government as may be required, the
Company hereby approves the appointment of Mr. Indranil Chatterjee (DIN : 00200577), who was earlier the Whole-time Director
(designated as Director — Commercial Operations), and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section
160(1) of the Companies Act from a Member, proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby designated and
appointed as Deputy Managing Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, for a period of three years with effect from
February 3, 2020 up to February 2, 2023 on the following remuneration, perquisites and benefits, as approved by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (the “NRC”) and the Board of Directors (the “Board”) at each of their meetings held on February 3, 2020,
respectively and on such other terms and conditions as set out in the explanatory statement:
Remuneration:
(i) Basic Salary:
In the range of ¥ 50,000/- to ¥ 3,00,000/- per month. In the first year, the Basic Salary shall be ¥ 1,25,000/- per month. Thereafter,
the Board of Directors shall fix annual increments every year within the above ceiling in compliance with Schedule V of the
Companies Act. The first increment shall be due from April 1, 2021.

(ii) Allowances:
(i) House Rent Allowance ¥ 62,500/- per month.
(ii) Additional Allowance ¥ 62,500/- per month.
The above allowances together with such other allowances as and when decided with such increments as may be fixed by the
Board shall not exceed 100 percent of the basic salary mentioned in (i) above.
(iii) Perquisites:
In addition to the aforesaid salary and allowances, Mr. Indranil Chatterjee shall be entitled to gratuity, mediclaim policy for self and
family, personal accident insurance for self and other benefits in accordance with the rules of the Company. The monetary value
of the perquisites shall be valued as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended and the Rules made thereunder
wherever applicable and in the absence of any such provision, perquisites shall be valued at actual cost.
(iv) Incentive Remuneration :
Such incentive remuneration not exceeding 100% of Basic Salary to be paid at the discretion of the Board annually, based on
certain performance criteria and such other parameters as may be considered appropriate from time to time.
(v) Commission:
Over and above the remuneration aforesaid, he shall be eligible for commission on the Net Profit as the Board may fix every year.
Provided that the total remuneration including perquisites, incentive remuneration and commission shall be within the overall
limits laid down in Sections 197 and 198 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act.
(vi) Sitting Fees:
Mr. Indranil Chatterjee shall not be entitled to any sitting fee for attending meetings of the Board and/or committee (s) of the
Directors.
In addition to the remuneration specified above, Mr. Indranil Chatterjee may also draw remuneration from other companies, in the
capacity of a managerial personnel, provided that the total remuneration (including basic salary, allowances, perquisites, incentive
remuneration and commission including the remuneration received from other companies) shall be within the overall limits laid down
under the Companies Act;
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT during the tenure of Mr. Indranil Chatterjee as Deputy Managing Director of the Company, if the Company
has no profits or if its profits are inadequate in any financial year, Mr. Indranil Chatterjee shall be eligible to draw the remuneration by
way of salary, allowances, perquisites, incentive remuneration and commission from the Company as well as from other companies
within overall limits prescribed under Section Il, Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act or re-enactment thereof;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said
remuneration in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Indranil Chatterjee subject to the limits prescribed
under the Companies Act;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or any committee of Directors that may be authorized by the Board in this behalf, be
and is hereby authorised to take such steps and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and settle any doubts, difficulties, issues
and questions in this regard as may be considered necessary, proper, desirable and expedient to give effect to this resolution;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Anjan Chatterjee, Chairman & Managing Director and Mr. Avinash Kinhikar, Company Secretary & Legal
Head be and are hereby severally authorised to file the various forms required to be filed under the Companies Act electronically from
time to time with the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal or such other concerned authorities.”

6. Appointment of Mr. Avik Chatterjee as a Director of the Company:
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), (the “Companies Act”), and Rules framed
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Mr.
Avik Chatterjee (DIN: 06452245), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect
from February 3, 2020, and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company under Section 161(1) of the
Companies Act and Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the Company, but who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom
the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Companies Act from a Member, proposing his candidature
for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

7. Appointment of Mr. Avik Chatterjee as a Whole-time Director of the Company:
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), (the “Companies Act”) read with
Schedule V and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time,
Regulation 17(6)(e) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Avik Chatterjee (DIN: 06452245), Whole-time Director (designated as
Executive Director — Innovation and New Formats), be and is hereby appointed as Whole-time Director, liable to retire by rotation, for a
period of three years with effect from February 3, 2020 up to February 2, 2023 on the following remuneration, perquisites and benefits,
as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the “NRC”) and the Board of Directors (the “Board”) at each of their
meetings held on February 3, 2020, respectively and on such other terms and conditions as set out in the explanatory statement:
Remuneration:
(i) Basic Salary:
In the range of ¥ 50,000/~ to ¥ 2,50,000/- per month. In the first year, the Basic Salary shall be ¥ 75,000/- per month. Thereafter,
the Board of Directors shall fix annual increments every year within the above ceiling in compliance with Schedule V of the
Companies Act. The first increment shall be due from April 1, 2021.
(ii) Allowances:
(i) House Rent Allowance ¥ 37,500/- per month.
(ii) Additional Allowance ¥ 37,500/~ per month.
The above allowances together with such other allowances as and when decided with such increments as may be fixed by the
Board shall not exceed 100 percent of the basic salary mentioned in (i) above.
(iii) Perquisites:
In addition to the aforesaid salary and allowances, Mr. Avik Chatterjee shall be entitled to gratuity, mediclaim policy for self and
family, personal accident insurance for self and other benefits in accordance with the rules of the Company. The monetary value
of the perquisites shall be valued as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended and the Rules made thereunder
wherever applicable and in the absence of any such provision, perquisites shall be valued at actual cost.
(iv) Incentive Remuneration :

Such incentive remuneration not exceeding 100% of Basic Salary to be paid at the discretion of the Board annually, based on
certain performance criteria and such other parameters as may be considered appropriate from time to time.
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(v) Commission:

Over and above the remuneration aforesaid, he shall be eligible for commission on the Net Profit as the Board may fix every year.
Provided that the total remuneration including salary, allowances, perquisites, incentive remuneration and commission shall be
within the overall limits laid down in Sections 197 and 198 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act.

(vi) Sitting Fees:

Mr. Avik Chatterjee shall not be entitled to any sitting fee for attending meetings of the Board and/or committee (s) of the
Directors.

In addition to the remuneration specified above, Mr. Avik Chatterjee may also draw remuneration from other companies, in the
capacity of a managerial personnel, provided that the total remuneration (including basic salary, allowances, perquisites, incentive
remuneration and commission including the remuneration received from other companies) shall be within the overall limits laid down
under the Companies Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT during the tenure of Mr. Avik Chatterjee as Whole-time Director of the Company, if the Company has no
profits or if its profits are inadequate in any financial year, Mr. Avik Chatterjee shall be eligible to draw the remuneration by way of
salary, allowances, perquisites, incentive remuneration and commission from the Company as well as from other companies within
overall limits prescribed under Section I, Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act or re-enactment thereof;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said
remuneration in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Avik Chatterjee subject to the limits prescribed under
the Companies Act;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or any committee of Directors that may be authorized by the Board in this behalf, be
and is hereby authorised to take such steps and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and settle any doubts, difficulties, issues
and questions in this regard as may be considered necessary, proper, desirable and expedient to give effect to this resolution;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Anjan Chatterjee, Chairman and Managing Director or Mr. Indranil Chatterjee, Deputy Managing
Director or Mr. Avinash Kinhikar, Company Secretary & Legal Head be and are hereby severally authorised to file the various forms
required to be filed under the Companies Act electronically from time to time with the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal or such
other concerned authorities.”

Appointment of Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay (DIN: 08672071) as an Independent Director of the Company:
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay (DIN: 08672071), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the
Board of Directors with effect from February 3, 2020, and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Companies Act”) and Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, but who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section
160(1) of the Companies Act from a Member, proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a
Director of the Company;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as
amended from time to time, appointment of Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay, who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act and Regulation 16(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”), who is eligible for appointment, be
and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of five
years with effect from February 3, 2020 upto February 2, 2025, be and is hereby approved.”

By Order of the Board
For Speciality Restaurants Limited

Avinash Kinhikar

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 23, 2020

Registered Office: Uniworth House,

3A, Gurusaday Road, Kolkata 700 019.

CIN: L55101WB1999PLC090672.
E-mail: corporate@speciality.co.in
Phone: 033-22837964.

Website: www.speciality.co.in
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Company Secretary and Legal Head
(Membership No. - FCS 8364)
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Notes:

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General Circular No. 20/2020 dated
May 5, 2020 read with Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 (collectively referred
to as “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2020/79 dated
12th May, 2020 permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC or OAVM, without the physical presence
of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Companies Act”), SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company
is being held through VC or OAVM.

The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company at Uniworth House, 3A,
Gurusaday Road, Kolkata 700 019, which shall be the deemed venue of the AGM.

As per the provisions of Clause 3.A.ll of the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, the matters of Special Business as
appearing at Item Nos. 4 to 8 of the accompanying Notice, are considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, form part of this
Notice.

The Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts in respect of the business under item nos. 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 to be transacted at
the AGM, as set out in this Notice is annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 112 and 113 the Companies Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being
held pursuant to the MCA circulars through VC or OAVM, the requirement of physical attendance of Members has been dispensed
with. Accordingly, in terms of the MCA circulars and the SEBI circular, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not
be available for this AGM and hence the proxy form, attendance slip and route map of AGM are not annexed to this Notice.

Members attending the Meeting through VC or OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of
the Companies Act.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC or OAVM mode 30 minutes before and 15 minutes after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in this Notice. The Members will be able to view the proceedings
on National Securities Depository Limited’s (‘NSDL’) e-voting website at www.evoting.nsdl.com. The facility of participation at the AGM
through VC or OAVM will be made available to at least 1,000 Members on a first come first served basis as per the MCA Circulars.

Institutional or Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (.pdf or .jpg
Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution or Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through
VC or OAVM on its behalf and to vote through e-voting. The said Resolution or Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by
e-mail through its registered email address to tchatterjeeassociates@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in and
investor@speciality.co.in.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act,
2013, the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013
and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode. Members can inspect the same
by sending an email to investor@speciality.co.in.

Members can also write to the Company on or before September 22, 2020 for obtaining relevant documents through e-mail on
investor@speciality.co.in. The same will be suitably replied to by the Company.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Wednesday, September 16, 2020 to
Tuesday, September 22, 2020 (both days inclusive).

Members are requested to address all correspondence including dividend matters, to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent, Link Intime India Private Limited, C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400 083 (the “Registrar” or “Transfer
Agent”).

Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate any change in their address or email address or bank
mandate to their respective Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in
physical form are requested to advise any change in their address or email address or bank mandates to the Registrar of the Company.

Unclaimed dividend for the financial years from 2012-13 to 2014-15 are held in separate bank accounts and members who have not
received the dividend/ or encashed the warrants are advised to claim such amount from the Company or Registrar. Members are
requested to note that dividends not claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account
and the shares on which such dividend remained unclaimed or unpaid will be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund
established by the Central Government as per Section 124 of the Companies Act.

Following are the details of unpaid dividend which is due for transfer to IEPF:

Financial Year Date of Declaration of Dividend Last date to claim unclaimed dividend
2012-13 13-08-2013 11-09-2020

The Registrar of the Company has already written to the shareholders whose dividend is unclaimed or unpaid informing them about
the due dates of transfer to IEPF for these payments, attention of the shareholders is again drawn to this matter through this Annual
Report.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Members are requested to note that, dividends if not encashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date of transfer to Unpaid
Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”). The shares
in respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be transferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority. In view of this,
Members are requested to claim their dividends from the Company, within the stipulated timeline. The Members, whose unclaimed
dividends/shares have been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by making an online application to the IEPF Authority in web Form
No. IEPF-5 available on www.iepf.gov.in.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report
2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company or the
Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2019-20 will also be available on the Company’s website www.
speciality.co.in, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com
and www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

At the twentieth annual general meeting of the Company held on August 23, 2019, the Members approved appointment of M/s.
Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 302049E) as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period
of five years from the conclusion of that annual general meeting till the conclusion of the twenty fifth annual general meeting to be
held in the year 2024, subject to ratification of their appointment by Members at every annual general meeting, if so required under
the Companies Act. The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for ratification by Members at every
annual general meeting has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no
resolution is being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the twenty-first AGM.

Documents for inspection will be available electronically, without any fee, from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of
the AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an e-mail to investor@speciality.co.in stating their DP ID and Client
ID or Folio No.

Voting through electronic means:

(i)  In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time and Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”), the Company is pleased to provide its Members facility
of remote e-voting (to cast their vote electronically from a place other than the venue of the AGM) through e-voting services
provided by National Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL) on all resolutions specified in this Notice.

(i) The Remote e-voting commences on Saturday, September 19, 2020 (from 09:00 a.m. Indian Standard Time, “IST”) and ends on
Monday, September 21, 2020 (at 5.00 p.m. IST). E-voting shall not be allowed after the aforesaid date and time. During this period
Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialised form, as on the cut-off date, being Tuesday,
September 15, 2020 may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL thereafter.

(iii) Members will be provided with the facility for voting through electronic voting during the video conferencing proceedings during
the AGM and Members participating during the AGM, who have not already cast their vote by remote e-Voting, will be eligible to
exercise their right to vote during such proceedings of the AGM. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to
the AGM will also be eligible to participate at the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again on such resolution(s) for
which the member has already cast the vote through remote e-voting.

(iv) A person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting before the AGM as well as e-voting
during the AGM. Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after the dispatch
of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date, i.e. Tuesday, September 15, 2020 may obtain the User ID and password
by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on
which voting is to be held, allow voting, by use of e-voting for all those Members who are present during the AGM through VC
or OAVM, but have not cast their votes by availing the e-voting facility. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting
15 minutes after the conclusion of the AGM.

(v) Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. Detail of the
process and manner of remote e-voting along with the user ID and password is being sent to all the members along with the
Notice.

(vi) The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on
the cut-off date being Tuesday, September 15, 2020.

=

The Board has appointed M/s. T. Chatterjee & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries firm (ICSI - Firm Unique Code No.:
P2007WB067100) represented by Ms. Binita Pandey — Company Secretary, failing her Ms. Sumana Mitra — Company Secretary
both Partners of M/s. T. Chatterjee & Associates (the “Scrutinizer”) as a scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting
process in a fair and transparent manner

(vii

(viii) The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman or in his absence any other Director authorised by the Board after the
completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes cast during the AGM and votes casted through remote e-voting), not later than
48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM.
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(ix) The Chairman or in his absence any other Director authorised by the Board shall forthwith on receipt of the Consolidated
Scrutinizer’s Report, declare the results of the voting. The Result declared, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, shall be placed on
the Company’s website www.speciality.co.in and on the website of NSDL after their declaration, and communicated to the BSE
Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:
Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system.

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-voting website?

1. Visit the e-voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
personal computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholders’ section.
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing
IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-voting and you can proceed to Step 2
i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4.  Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical | Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is
12****** then your user ID is IN3QQ***12¥*****
b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12%**¥*¥kkskkik* then
your user ID iS 12**************
c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the
company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456
then user ID is 101456001 ***

5. Your password details are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) Ifyouare using NSDL e-voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated
to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to
change your password.

c¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you
on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment
i.e. a.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits
of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and
your ‘initial password’”.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email
ids are not registered

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) Ifyou are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning
your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-voting system of NSDL.
After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-voting will open.
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Details on Step 2 is given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system?

1.

6.
7.
8.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-voting. Click on e-voting. Then, click on Active Voting
Cycles.

After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose
voting cycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.
Now you are ready for e-voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to
cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to tchatterjeeassociates@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such
an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for
Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request
to or contact Mr. Amit Vishal, Senior Manager/Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL, Trade World, ‘A" Wing, 4th Floor, Kamala Mills
Compound, Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400013 at telephone no. 022- 24994360/022 24994545 or at E-mail id evoting@nsdl.co.in.

However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and password for
casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the
Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or casting vote through e-voting
system during the Meeting.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and password and
registration of e-mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this Notice:

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate
(front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by e-mail to
evoting@nsdl.co.in

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), name, client
master or copy of consolidated account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:

32

The procedure for e-voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC or OAVM facility and have not casted their vote
on the resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting
system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote
at the AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-voting on the day of the AGM
shall be the same person mentioned for remote e-voting.
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20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC or OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC or OAVM through the NSDL e-voting system. Members may
access the same at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials.
The link for VC or OAVM will be available in shareholder/members login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please
note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password
may retrieve the same by following the remote e-voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. Further,
Members can also use the OTP based login for logging into the e-voting system of NSDL.

2. Members are encouraged to join the AGM through laptops for better experience.

3. Further, Members will be required to allow camera and use internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the
meeting.

4. Please note that participants connecting from mobile devices or tablets or through laptops connecting via mobile hotspot may
experience audio or video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable wi-fi or
LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views or ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker
by sending their request mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, e-mail id, mobile number at investor@
speciality.co.in between Tuesday, September 15, 2020 to Thursday, September 17, 2020. Those Members who have pre-registered
themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views or ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves
the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM. The speaker shall ensure being
connected to a device with a video or camera along with good internet speed for the same. Those speakers whose names are
called out by the Chairman and are not available will not be allowed to speak later to ensure proceedings flow in a smooth
manner.

6. When a pre-registered speaker is invited to speak at the AGM but he or she does not respond, the next speaker will be invited to
speak. Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get connected to a device with a video or camera along with good internet speed.

7. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate, for smooth conduct
of the AGM.

8.  Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact NSDL on evoting@nsdl.co.in / 1800-222-990 or contact
Mr. Amit Vishal, Senior Manager-NSDL at amitv@nsdl.co.in / 022-24994360 or Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL at
pallavid@nsdl.co.in/ 022-24994545.

Pursuant to Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and as required under Secretarial Standards — 2 on General Meetings
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the details of Director seeking appointment or re-appointment at the AGM
have been annexed to this Notice.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, facility for making nomination is available for Members in respect of shares
held by them. Members holding shares in single name and who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the
same by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record fresh nomination, he may submit
the same in Form SH-14. Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain nomination forms from their respective Depository
participant.

To support the “Green Initiative”, Members who have not registered their email addresses are requested to register the same with
Registrar or their depository participants, in respect of shares held in physical or electronic mode, respectively.

In terms of Amendment to Regulation 40 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, vide Gazette notification dated June 8, 2018 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India Notification dated
November 30, 2018, which has mandated that the request for transfer of shares will be processed only if the shares are held in
dematerialised form (DEMAT) (except in case transmission or transposition of shares) with effect from April 1, 2019. The Company has
sent reminders to shareholders holding shares in physical form to dematerialise their shares promptly to avoid inconvenience.

SEBI through its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR /P/2018/73 dated April 20, 2018 has directed all the listed companies to record

the PAN of all the shareholders and Bank Account details of registered shareholder. The Company has sent intimations to eligible
shareholders to update Permanent Account Number (PAN) and bank account details of shareholder(s) in the Members’ register.
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act.

The following Explanatory Statement sets out the material facts relating to the business under Item Nos. 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 of this Notice dated
July 23, 2020.

Item No. 4: Re-appointment of Mr. Anjan Chatterjee (DIN: 00200443) as Managing Director of the Company:

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Mr. Anjan Chatterjee was appointed as Managing Director of the Company at the meeting of the Board held on May 27, 2017 for a
period of three years effective from December 27, 2017 to December 26, 2020. The appointment was approved by the Members at the
annual general meeting held on August 21, 2017.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board in its meeting held on July 23, 2020 has,
subject to the approval of the Members, approved re-appointment of Mr. Anjan Chatterjee as the Managing Director of the Company
for a period of three years with effect from December 27, 2020. The Board has also approved terms of remuneration payable to
him during his tenure as the Managing Director. The re-appointment of Mr. Anjan Chatterjee as Managing Director and payment of
remuneration is subject to the approval of the Members of the Company and subject to such other approvals of applicable authorities,
if any, under applicable laws.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, read with
Schedule V of the Companies Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, the re-appointment of Mr. Anjan Chatterjee as the
Managing Director is subject to approval of the Members of the Company in the AGM.

Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
Regulation 17(6)(e) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, was
inserted with effect from April 1, 2019, which provides that the approval of the shareholders by way of a special resolution in a general
meeting shall be obtained in the event the annual remuneration payable to executive directors who are promoters or member of the
promoter group exceeds rupees 5 crore or 2.5 per cent of the net profits of the listed entity, whichever is higher; or where there is more
than one such director, the aggregate annual remuneration to such directors exceeds 5 per cent of the net profits of the listed entity.

Mr. Anjan Chatterjee is the promoter of the Company and his proposed aggregate annual remuneration exceeds 5% of the net profits of
the Company. In order to comply with the requirement of Regulation 17(6)(e) of the listing regulations, approval of the Shareholders
is being sought by way of Special Resolution.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, if the Company has no profits or if its profits are inadequate in any financial year, the Managing
Director of the Company shall be entitled to draw remuneration not exceeding the limits prescribed in Schedule V of the Companies Act.

Mr. Anjan Chatterjee has also been holding the managerial position in Situations Advertising and Marketing Services Private Limited
and has drawn remuneration for the financial year 2019-20. Since, Mr. Anjan Chatterjee is drawing remuneration in more than one
company, in terms of Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act, the total remuneration drawn by him from both the
companies did not exceed the higher of the maximum limit admissible from any one of the companies in which he is a managerial
person.

Background of Mr. Anjan Chatterjee is set out below:

Mr. Anjan Chatterjee, aged 61 years, holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Science and Diploma in Hotel Management. He has been the
Managing Director of the Company since 2007 and has an experience of over 30 years in the Advertising and Hospitality Industry.
Mr. Anjan Chatterjee was the Vice President of National Restaurants Association of India.

A draft of the letter of appointment proposed to be issued by the Company to Mr. Anjan Chatterjee in connection with his
re-appointment as the Managing Director of the Company and setting out the terms and conditions of his re-appointment, including
the remuneration, is available for electronic inspection by the Members on all working days, during business hours, upto the date of
the AGM.

The Managing Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

The Managing Director shall act under the overall supervision and direction of the Board. Save as aforesaid, the Managing Director
is vested with the management and control of the Company and is hereby authorised to exercise all the powers of management of
the Company and its business save and except such powers as are required by law for the time being in force to be exercised by the
Company in the general meeting or by the Board.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives except Mr. Anjan Chatterjee, Mrs. Suchhanda
Chatterjee (Spouse) and Mr. Avik Chatterjee (Son) are, in any way, concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the resolution set
out under Item No. 4 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out under Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the Members to be
passed as a special resolution.

The additional information, as required under Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act, has been set forth at the end of
the Explanatory Statement in paragraph no. 48

Item No. 5: Designating and Appointment of Mr. Indranil Chatterjee (DIN: 00200577) Whole-time Director, as Deputy Managing Director
of the Company:

14.

Mr. Indranil Chatterjee was re-appointed as a Whole-time Director of the Company at the meeting of the Board held on May 26, 2018
for a period of three years with effect from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

At the annual general meeting held on August 27, 2018, the Members had approved the re-appointment and terms of remuneration
of Mr. Indranil Chatterjee.

At the annual general meeting held on August 23, 2019, Members had approved a special resolution for ratification of remuneration
paid to Mr. Indranil Chatterjee as a Whole-time Director of the Company pursuant to the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017.

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and considering his significant contributions made by him
to the Company, the Board at their meeting held on February 3, 2020 has, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company,
approved, designated and appointed Mr. Indranil Chatterjee as Deputy Managing Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation,
for a period of three years with effect from February 3, 2020 upto February 2, 2023. The appointment of Mr. Indranil Chatterjee as
Deputy Managing Director and payment of remuneration is subject to the approval of the Members of the Company and subject to
further approvals of any statutory or regulatory authorities wherever applicable.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, read with
Schedule V of the Companies Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, the appointment of Mr. Indranil Chatterjee as
Deputy Managing Director is subject to approval of the Members of the Company at the AGM.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, during the period of appointment if the Company has no profits or if its profits are inadequate in any
financial year, the Managerial Personnel shall be entitled to draw remuneration not exceeding the limits prescribed in Schedule V of
the Companies Act.

Background of Mr. Indranil Chatterjee is set out below:-

Mr. Indranil Chatterjee, is a whole-time Director of the Company. He has been a Director of the Company since August 18, 2005. He holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from University of Calcutta and a Post Graduate Diploma in Business Management from Institute of
Modern Management, Calcutta. Mr. Indranil Chatterjee has over 30 years of experience in the field of Finance and Marketing. He brings
to the table his well-rounded management skills and strategic inputs for the Company’s growth and expansion plans.

A draft of the letter of appointment proposed to be issued by the Company to Mr. Indranil Chatterjee in connection with his appointment
as Deputy Managing Director of the Company which sets out the terms and conditions of his appointment including the proposed
remuneration is available for electronic inspection by the members on all working days during business hours, upto the date of the
meeting.

None of the Directors of the Company or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Indranil Chatterjee are in any way,
concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the resolution set out under Item No. 5 of the Notice

The Board recommends the resolution as set out under Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the Members to be
passed as a special resolution.

The additional information, as required under Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act, has been set forth at the end of
the Explanatory Statement in paragraph No. 48

Item No. 6 and 7: Appointment of Mr. Avik Chatterjee as Director of the Company and Appointment of Mr. Avik Chatterjee as a Whole-
time Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from February 3, 2020 up to February 2, 2023:

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board at their meeting held on February 3, 2020 has,
subject to the approval of the Members of the Company, approved appointment of Mr. Avik Chatterjee as an additional Whole-time
Director (designated as Executive Director — Innovation and New Formats) of the Company for a period of three years with effect from
February 3, 2020 to February 2, 2023.

In terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act and Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Avik Chatterjee holds
office as an Additional Director up to the date of the forthcoming AGM of the Company, but is eligible for appointment as Director.
The Company has received Notice pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, from a Member proposing his candidature for the
office of Director of the Company at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. The Board commends to the Members his appointment as
Director of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 188, 196, 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, read with
Schedule V of the Companies Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, the appointment of Mr. Avik Chatterjee as the
Whole-time Director is subject to approval of the Members of the Company at the AGM.

Mr. Avik Chatterjee, Whole-time Director of the Company holds the office of place of profit and the proposed remuneration is within
the limits as prescribed under the Section 188 of the Companies Act.

Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
Regulation 17(6)(e) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, was
inserted with effect from April 1, 2019, which provides that the approval of the shareholders by way of a Special resolution in a general
meeting shall be obtained in the event the annual remuneration payable to executive directors who are promoters or member of the
promoter group exceeds rupees 5 crore or 2.5 per cent of the net profits of the listed entity, whichever is higher; or where there is more
than one such director, the aggregate annual remuneration to such directors exceeds 5 per cent of the net profits of the listed entity.
Mr. Avik Chatterjee is member of the promoter group of the Company and his proposed aggregate annual remuneration exceeds 5% of
the net profits of the Company. In order to comply with the requirement of Regulation 17(6)(e) of the listing regulations, approval of
the Shareholders is being sought by way of Special Resolution.
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30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, during the period of appointment if the Company has no profits or if its profits are inadequate in any
financial year, the Whole-time Director shall be entitled to draw remuneration not exceeding the limits prescribed in Schedule V of the
Companies Act.

Background of Mr. Avik Chatterjee is set out below:-

Mr. Avik Chatterjee holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from Kingston University, London. During the period of his
study at London he worked on the project of Lounge Bars.

He is Head - Innovation and New Formats of the Company with effect from November 2015. He is spearheading the Company’s
launch of several new brands viz. “Hoppipola”, “POH” (Progressive Oriental House), “Hay” and “Episode One”. He is responsible for
development of New Formats and setting up of process for its smooth operations.

As Head - Innovation and New Formats, he brings to the table conceptualization of new brands, concepts & detailed analysis on
prevailing trends in market, constant research and development towards food and beverage and identification of new markets and
customer needs or preferences.

A draft of the letter of appointment proposed to be issued by the Company to Mr. Avik Chatterjee in connection with his appointment
as the Whole-time Director of the Company which sets out the terms and conditions of his appointment including the proposed
remuneration is available for electronic inspection by the Members on all working days, during business hours, upto the date of this
AGM.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives except Mr. Anjan Chatterjee and Mrs. Suchhanda
Chatterjee (Father and Mother of Mr. Avik Chatterjee) are, in any way, concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the Resolution
set out under Item No. 6 and 7 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out under Item No. 6 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the Members to be
passed as an ordinary resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out under Item No. 7 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the Members to be
passed as a special resolution.

The additional information, as required under Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act, has been set forth at the end of
the Explanatory Statement in paragraph No. 48.

Item No. 8: Appointment of Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay (DIN: 08672071) as an Independent Director of the Company:

38.

39.

The Board of Directors appointed Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay (DIN: 08672071) , as an additional Independent Director of the Company
for a term of five years with effect from February 3, 2020, subject to the approval of the Members at the AGM. In terms of Section
161 of the Companies Act and Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay holds office as an
Additional Director up to the date of the forthcoming AGM of the Company, but is eligible for appointment as Director. The Company
has received Notice pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, from a Member proposing her candidature for the office of Director
of the Company at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. The Board commends to the Members her appointment as Director of the
Company.

Background and brief profile of Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay:

Founder Director KafeHR, is an acclaimed expert in Leadership Development, Change Management, Talent Management, Performance
Management and HR Processes. Corporate Succession Planning is her niche forte.

e  Sheis credited with setting-up and leading the Learning & Development functions for over 10,000 employees at the Ajay Piramal
Group. She also designed and executed Employee Engagement Programs and Leadership Pipeline development interventions for
the same group.

e Her Talent Management Processes have been institutionalized at the 5000 personnel strong Pidilite Industries.

e  She has extensively worked to streamline PMS Process for notable names like Raymond Group, Pidilite Industries and Baerlocher
India Additives amongst others.

Capabilities: Dr. Anita has the capability and skill to deliver across the entire spectrum of HR needs, be it for a small Leadership group
or extremely large groups of employees across businesses and departments. She has a proven expertise in Strategic HR initiatives and
Operational Capability Building for greater organizational effectiveness. With over 20 years’ experience in HR interventions, she has
worked with industries ranging from Pharmaceuticals, Glass Packaging, Education, Adhesives, Textile & Apparels having core insight
into Manufacturing, Education, FMCG, Retail and B2B businesses.

Differentiators: Dr. Anita has a Doctorate in Applied Psychology from Kolkata University and an Executive MBA from SP Jain Institute of
Management & Research, Mumbai. With work experiences across academics domain and corporate world, she has a rare amalgamation
of strong conceptual knowledge with result oriented application practice.

Her academic career at SP Jain Institute of Management & Research and Welingkar Institute of Management have equipped her
with in-depth domain knowledge and strong theoretical base. Her corporate experiences at Ajay Piramal Group, Raymond Group and
Pidilite Industries have honed her skills in Learning & Development, Psychometric Assessments, Talent Management, OD Interventions,
Performance Management, Compensation & Benefits, Talent Acquisition and HR Policies. She has worked with clients like Abbot
Pharma, Baerlocher India Additives and UPL for Performance Management, Talent Management, Leadership Development, Change
Management and Succession Planning.
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40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

Dr. Anita brings to the table this unique combination of strong OB concepts with proven HR practices, to make her a well-rounded,
incisive and successful professional who delivers positive results.

She was invited to be a part of the panel at various HR Conferences organized by Aon Hewitt, HT Shine HR Conclave, SHRM, People
Matters and many top notch B Schools

Certifications: Dr. Anita has undergone

e Coaching Certification program by Marshall Goldsmith at the Indian School Of Business, Hyderabad

e  (Certified in Leadership Architect 101 Competency Library by Korn/Ferry International, in OPQ32 by SHL Ltd.
e An Engagement Champion in Gallup Q12, GPTW as well as Coffman EE2.0.”

Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay is a Non-Executive Director and is considered as “independent” under the Companies Act and Regulation
16(b) of the Listing Regulations.

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, an Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five years on the
Board of Directors of a company and is not liable to retire by rotation. Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay has given declaration to the Board that
she meets the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act and under the Listing Regulations.
The matter regarding the appointment of Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay as an Independent Director was placed before the Board, based
on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which commends her appointment as an Independent
Director of the Company

In the opinion of the Board, Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act for appointment as an
Independent Director and is independent of the management of the Company.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, the appointment of Dr. Anita
Bandyopadhyay is now being placed before the Members at the AGM for their approval.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay shall be open for electronic inspection without any fee by the
Members during normal business hours on any working day of the Company upto the date of the AGM.

None of the Directors except Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the resolution set out under Item No. 8 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution set out under Item No. 8 of the accompanying Notice for approval of Members as an ordinary
resolution.

48. The additional information, as required under Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act, has been set forth below:
Particulars Name of the Director
Mr. Anjan Chatterjee Mr. Indranil Chatterjee Mr. Avik Chatterjee
(I) |General Information:
(i) |Nature of Industry: The Company is engaged in the business of restaurant industry.
(ii) | Date or expected date of Not applicable
commencement of commercial
production
(iii) |In case of new companies, Not applicable

expected date of
commencement of activities
as per project approved by
financial institutions appearing
in the prospectus:

(iv) |Financial performance based Z In Millions

on given indicators: Particulars Financial Years
2019-20 2018-19 2017-18

Paid-up Capital 469.6 469.6 469.6

Other Equity 1,192.2 1,751.1 1,821.1

Turnover & Other Income 3,677.5 3,558.2 3,046.9

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (388.5) (67.9) (530.4)

(v) |Foreign investment or Speciality Hospitality UK Limited, wholly owned Subsidiary (WOS) company of the Company has a

collaborations, if any joint venture with Homage Ventures LLP to setup, own and operate restaurant in London, United

Kingdom under Caterland Hospitality Ltd, step down subsidiary company of the Company.

The Company has invested GBP 10,33,500 in the WOS Company by way of subscription of 10,33,500
fully paid-up equity shares of GBP 1 each of the WOS company.

Speciality Hospitality US, Inc., wholly owned Subsidiary (WOS) company of the Company has a joint
venture with Associated Hospitality & Developers LLC to setup, own and operate restaurants in
United States of America under Foodland Ventures LLC.

The Company has invested USD 1,00,000 in the WOS Company by way of subscription of 1,00,000
fully paid-up equity shares of USD 1 each of the WOS company.
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Particulars

Name of the Director

Mr. Anjan Chatterjee

Mr. Indranil Chatterjee

Mr. Avik Chatterjee

()

Information about Director

(i)

Background details

Please refer paragraph 7 of
the Explanatory Statement.

Please refer paragraph 20 of
the Explanatory Statement.

Please refer paragraph 31 of the
Explanatory Statement.

(i)

Past remuneration

The remuneration drawn for
last three financial years (FY):

FY 2017-18: % 6.00 million
FY 2018-19: ¥ 6.00 million
FY 2019-20:% 5.75 million

The remuneration drawn for
last three financial years (FY):

FY 2017-18: % 2.10 million
FY 2018-19: ¥ 2.10 million
FY 2019-20:% 2.12 million

The remuneration drawn for last
three financial years (FY):

FY 2017-18: NA
FY 2018-19: NA
FY 2019-20:% 0.22 million

(ii)

Recognition or Awards

The Company has won awards for various brands. The detai

43 of the Annual Report.

Is of the awards are given on page no.

(iv)

Job profile and his suitability

Mr. Anjan Chatterjee has over
30 years of experience in the
Advertising and Hospitality
Industry and is responsible
for the overall supervision,
control and management
of the Company. He has
contributed significantly to
the achievements of the
Company and the Board
is of the opinion that his
continuing appointment
would be beneficial to the
Company.

Mr. Indranil Chatterjee is
having over 30 years of
experience in the field of
Finance and Marketing.
He brings to the table his
well rounded management
skills and strategic inputs
for the Company’s growth
and expansion plans. He
has contributed significantly
to the achievements of the
Company and the Board
is of the opinion that his
appointment as Deputy
Managing Director would be
beneficial to the Company.

Mr. Avik Chatterjee is Head -
Innovation and New Formats of
the Company with effect from
November 2015. He is spearheading
the Company’s launch of several
new brands viz. “Hoppipola”, “POH”
(Progressive Oriental House), “Hay”
and “Episode One”. He is responsible
for development of New Formats and
setting up of process for its smooth
operations.

He has contributed significantly to
the achievements of the Company
and the Board is of the opinion that
his appointment would be beneficial
to the Company.

(v)

Remuneration proposed

The proposed remuneration
comprises of basic salary,
allowances, perquisites,
commission, incentive
remuneration and benefits as
mentioned under Item No. 4
of this Notice subject to the
provisions of Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013.

The proposed remuneration
comprises of basic salary,
allowances, perquisites,
incentive remuneration,
commission and benefits as
mentioned under Item No. 5
of this Notice subject to the
provisions of Schedule V of
the Companies Act.

The proposed remuneration
comprises of basic salary, allowances,
perquisites, incentive remuneration,
commission and  benefits as
mentioned under Item No. 7 of this
Notice subject to the provisions of
Schedule V of the Companies Act.

(vi)

Comparative remuneration
profile with respect to industry,
size of the company, profile of
the position and person

Taking into consideration
the size of the Company,
the profile of Mr.
Anjan Chatterjee, the
responsibilities  shouldered
by him and the industry
benchmarks, the
remuneration proposed to
be paid is in commensurate
with  the  remuneration
package paid to similar senior
level counterpart(s) in the
industry.

Taking into consideration
the size of the Company,
the profile of Mr.
Indranil Chatterjee,
the responsibilities
shouldered by him and the
industry benchmarks, the
remuneration proposed to
be paid is in commensurate
with  the remuneration
package paid to similar
senior level counterpart(s)
in the industry.

Taking into consideration the
size of the Company, the profile
of Mr. Avik Chatterjee, the
responsibilities shouldered by him
and the industry benchmarks,
the remuneration proposed to be
paid is in commensurate with the
remuneration package paid to similar
level counterpart(s) in the industry.
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Particulars

Name of the Director

Mr. Anjan Chatterjee

Mr. Indranil Chatterjee

Mr. Avik Chatterjee

(vii)

Pecuniary relationship directly
or indirectly with the company
or relationship with the
managerial personnel, if any

Except for the remuneration
paid to him, to the extent of
shares held and the related
party transactions entered
into with the Company by
Mr. Anjan Chatterjee and his
relatives or the companies
in which he is interested,
which has been approved
by the Audit Committee,
Mr. Anjan Chatterjee has no
other pecuniary relationship
with the Company except
Mrs. Suchhanda Chatterjee
(Spouse) and Mr. Avik
Chatterjee (Son).

Except for the remuneration
paid to him and to the extent
of shares held, Mr. Indranil
Chatterjee has no other
pecuniary relationship with

the Company or relationship
with the managerial
personnel.

Except for the remuneration paid
to him, to the extent of shares held
and the related party transactions
entered into with the Company by Mr.
Anjan Chatterjee and Mrs. Suchhanda
Chatterjee, relatives of Mr. Avik
Chatterjee, which has been approved
by the Audit Committee, Mr. Avik
Chatterjee has no other pecuniary
relationship  with the Company
except Mr. Anjan Chatterjee and
Mrs. Suchhanda Chatterjee (Father
and Mother of Mr. Avik Chatterjee).

(m

Other Information

(i)

Reasons of loss or inadequate
profits

Reduction in discretionary spending power of consumers, the negative same store sales growth
and lower footfalls during the weekdays has affected the profitability of the restaurant industry,
in general and thereby resulted in decline in the profitability level. The longer break-even in some
of the restaurants, Impairment of Investment and receivables resulted in loss during the financial
year 2019-20.

(i)

Steps taken or proposed to be
taken for improvement

The Company is taking steps to control costs and in the process of closing unviable restaurants with
the aim of optimising the cost and improving the revenue and profits.

(iii) |Expected increase in
productivity and profits in

measurable terms

The Company expects to achieve desired level of revenue and profitability over a period of time.

(IV) |Disclosures:

The relevant disclosures with regard to the remuneration, service contracts, notice period, stock
options etc., have been given on page no. 78 of the Annual Report.

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 23, 2020

Registered Office: Uniworth House,
3A, Gurusaday Road, Kolkata 700 019.
CIN: L55101WB1999PLC090672.
E-mail: corporate@speciality.co.in
Phone: 033-22837964.

Website: www.speciality.co.in
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By Order of the Board
For Speciality Restaurants Limited

Avinash Kinhikar
Company Secretary and Legal Head
(Membership No. - FCS 8364)
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Details of the Director seeking appointment or re-appointment at the 21 AGM

(Pursuant to Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard (SS-2) on General Meetings issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India)

Name of the Director

Mr. Anjan Chatterjee

Mrs. Suchhanda Chatterjee

Mr. Indranil Chatterjee

Director Identification
Number (DIN)

00200443

00226893

00200577

Date of Birth and Age

February 16, 1959, 61 years

October 9, 1965, 55 years

April 22, 1960, 60 years

Date of First Appointment on
the Board

December 1, 1999

December 1, 1999

August 18, 2005

has been Director of the Company since
December 1, 1999. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Science from University of
Calcutta and obtained a Diploma in Hotel
Management, Catering Technology
and Applied Nutrition from the State
Council for Engineering and Technical
Education, West Bengal. He has over 30
years of experience in the advertising
and hospitality industry which includes
training at The Indian Hotels Company
Limited as a management trainee.

Company. She has been Director
of the Company since December
1, 1999. She holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Arts from University of
Calcutta. She has over 20 years
of experience in the Hospitality
industry.

Qualifications Bachelor’s Degree in Science and a|B.A. B.Com., Post Graduate
Diploma in Hotel Management, Catering Diploma in Business
Technology and Applied Nutrition. Management

Brief Resume Mr. Anjan Chatterjee is a Chairman and | Mrs. Suchhanda Chatterjee is|Mr. Indranil Chatterjee, is
Managing Director of the Company. He|a whole-time Director of the|a whole-time Director of

the Company. He has been
a Director of the Company
since August 18, 2005. He
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Commerce from University
of Calcutta and a Post
Graduate Diploma in Business

Management from Institute
of Modern Management,
Calcutta.

Current Designation

Chairman and Managing Director

Whole-time Director designated
as Director-Interior & Design.

Deputy Managing Director

Nature of expertise in specific
functional areas

Over 30 vyears of experience in

Advertising and Hospitality industry.

Over 20 years of experience in
the Hospitality industry.

Over 30 years of experience
in the field of Finance and
Marketing. He brings to
the table his well rounded
management skills and
strategic inputs for the
Company’s growth and
expansion plans.

Details of other Directorships/
Membership/Chairmanships
of the Committees of other
Boards*

(i) Names of listed entities in
which the person holds the
Directorship and

(i) the Membership of
Committees of the Board **

Managing Director of  Speciality

Restaurants Limited.

Speciality Restaurants Limited

Audit Committee — Member
Stakeholders Relationship Committee -
Member

Whole-Time Director of
Speciality Restaurants Limited.

Deputy Managing Director of
Speciality Restaurants Limited.

Speciality Restaurants Limited
Stakeholders Relationship
Committee — Member

Disclosure of relationship
with other Directors inter
se, Manager, and other Key
Managerial Personnel of the
Company.

Not related to any Director, Manager,
and other Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company or their relatives except
Mrs. Suchhanda Chatterjee and Mr. Avik
Chatterjee, Whole-time Directors of the
Company

Not related to any Director,
Manager, and other Key
Managerial Personnel of the
Company except Mr. Anjan
Chatterjee, Chairman &
Managing Director and Mr. Avik
Chatterjee, Whole-time Director
of the Company.

Not related to any Director,
Manager and other Key
Managerial Personnel of the
Company.

appointment

AGM dated July 23, 2020

time Director retires by rotation
in this AGM.

No. of shares held in the|1,20,70,000 1,19,70,000 1,299
Company
Terms and conditions of|Refer Item No. 4 of the Notice of the|Not applicable since the Whole- | Refer Item No. 5 of the Notice

of the AGM dated July 23,
2020
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Name of the Director

Mr. Anjan Chatterjee

Mrs. Suchhanda Chatterjee

Mr. Indranil Chatterjee

Details of remuneration
sought to be paid

Refer Item No. 4 of the Notice of the
AGM dated July 23, 2020

Not Applicable since the
Whole-time Director retires by
rotation. Members have already
approved re-appointment
including terms of remuneration
of Mrs. Suchhanda Chatterjee
as a Whole-time Director
(designated as Director —Interior
and Design) of the Company for
a period of three years with
effect from July 1, 2018 up to
June 30, 2021 at the 19th AGM
held on August 27, 2018.

Refer Item No. 5 of the Notice
of the AGM dated July 23,
2020

Last drawn remuneration

% 57,50,000/- for the financial year

% 20,12,500/- for the financial

¥ 21,25,000/- for the financial

2019-20.

year 2019-20.

year 2019-20.

No of meetings of the Board
attended during the financial
year 2019-20

5 Meetings

2 Meetings

6 Meetings

* Excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Government Bodies

**0Only two committees viz. Audit Committee and Shareholders Relationship Committee have been considered.

Name of the Director

Mr. Avik Chatterjee

Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay

Director Identification Number (DIN)

06452245

08672071

Date of Birth and Age

February 15, 1992, 28 years

November 5, 1968, 52 years

Date of First Appointment on the Board

February 3, 2020

February 3, 2020

Qualifications

Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration from Kingston University,
London.

Doctorate in Applied Psychology from Kolkata
University and an Executive MBA from SP Jain
Institute of Management & Research, Mumbai.

Brief Resume

Please refer to Paragraph No. 31 of the
Explanatory Statement to the Notice of the
AGM dated July 23, 2020.

Please refer to Paragraph 39 of the Explanatory
Statement to Notice of AGM dated July 23, 2020.

Current Designation

Additional Whole-time Director (designated
as Executive Director — Innovation and New
Formats)

Additional Independent Director

Nature of expertise in specific functional
areas

Research and development towards food
and beverage and identification of new
markets and customer needs / preferences.

Please refer to Paragraph 39 of the Explanatory
Statement to the Notice of the AGM dated July 23,
2020.

Directorships/
of the

Details of  other
Membership/Chairmanships
Committees of other Boards*

(i) Names of listed entities in which the
person holds the Directorship and

(ii) the Membership of Committees of
the Board **

Additional Whole-time Director of
Speciality Restaurants Limited.

Nil

Additional Independent Director of Speciality
Restaurants Limited.

Nil

Disclosure of relationship with other
Directors inter se, Manager, and other
Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company.

Not related to any Director, Manager,
and other Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company or their relatives except Mr.
Anjan Chatterjee, Chairman and Managing
Director and Mrs. Suchhanda Chatterjee,
Whole-time Director of the Company.

Not related to any Director, Manager, and other
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives.

No. of shares held in the Company 19 Nil
Terms and conditions of appointment Refer Item No. 6 and 7 of the Notice of the|Refer Item No. 8 of the Notice of the AGM dated
AGM dated July 23, 2020. July 23, 2020.

Details of remuneration sought to be
paid

Refer Item No. 7 of the Notice of the AGM
dated July 23, 2020.

Dr. Anita Bandyopadhyay will not be paid any
remuneration other than sitting fee for attending
meetings of the Board and Committees thereof of
which she is a member/Chairman and commission
which may be approved by the Board of Directors.

Last drawn remuneration

¥ 2,25,000/- for the period February 2020
to March 2020.

Not applicable

No of meetings of the Board attended
during the financial year 2019-20

Not applicable

Not applicable

* Excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Government Bodies
**0Only two committees viz. Audit Committee and Shareholders Relationship Committee have been considered.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members

Speciality Restaurants Limited

Your Directors hereby present the Twenty First Annual Report together with the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2020.

1.

Financial Results T In Millions

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Revenue from operations 3,577.9 3,463.6 3,577.9 3,463.6
Other Income 99.6 94.6 102.7 94.6
Total Income 3,677.5 3,558.2 3,680.6 3,558.2
Earnings before Interest, Depreciation, Amortization and Tax 669.6 233.7 672.4 219.3
Less:
Finance Costs 211.5 0.0 211.4 0.0
Depreciation /Amortization/Impairment 574.9 287.0 574.9 287.0
Loss before exceptional item and tax (116.8) (53.3) (113.9) (67.8)
Share of loss in Joint venture company - - (1.3) (0.2)
Loss before exceptional item and tax (116.8) (53.3) (115.2) (68.0)
Less: Exceptional item (273.8) - (273.8) -
Loss before Tax (390.6) (53.3) (389.0) (68.0)
Less: Taxes Expenses / (credit)
Current Tax - 9.0 - 9.0
Deferred Tax - - - _
Short provision for tax relating to prior years (9.0) 1.1 (9.0) 1.1
Loss for the year (381.6) (63.4) (380.0) (78.1)
Total other comprehensive (loss) / income (6.9) (4.5) (4.2) (5.3)
Total comprehensive loss for the period (388.5) (67.9) (384.2) (83.4)
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Financial Performance and the state of Company’s affairs

Your Company’s performance for the financial year 2019-20 needs to be analysed in the context of the economic and operating

environment as under:

(i) Total Income of your Company for the year under review, which was ¥ 3,677.5 million as against ¥ 3,558.2 million in the previous
year, registered a growth of 3.35%.

(i) The earnings before Depreciation, Interest, Tax and Amortization (EBDITA), which amounted to ¥ 669.6 million (18.21% of the
revenue) as against T 233.7 million (6.57% of the revenue) in the previous year.

(iii) Total comprehensive loss for the year under review was ¥ (388.5) million as against ¥ (67.9) million in the previous year.

The detailed analysis on financial performance is included under the Management Discussion and Analysis Report.

However, it is to be noted that the performance of the Company during March 2020 was impacted by the lockdown declared and

closure of restaurants on account of the COVID - 19 pandemic.

During the year under review, your Company opened seventeen (17) restaurants out of which twelve (12) are Company Owned

Company Operated (COCO) while five (5) are Franchise Owned Company Operated (FOCO) and eight (8) confectionaries. At the end of

financial year ended March 31, 2020, your Company has 109 restaurants (including 26 franchisees) and 31 confectionaries.

Dividend on Equity Shares

The Board of Directors of your Company (the “Board”), after considering the financial performance during the year under review, has

decided not to recommend any dividend for the year under review (previous year-Nil).

Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)

During the year under review, the Company has not granted any fresh stock option to its employees. Details of the options granted
under Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS), as also the disclosures in compliance with Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended and the rules made thereunder (“Companies Act”) and Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999
(the “SEBI Guidelines”) and SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (the “SEBI Regulations”) are given in Annexure A
which forms part of this report.

Certificate from Statutory Auditors M/s. Singhi and Co., Chartered Accountants, with regard to implementation of ESOS Scheme of
the Company in compliance with SEBI Regulations would be available for electronic inspection by the Members at the ensuing annual
general meeting.
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5. Audited Financial Statements

As per Regulation 34(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(the “Listing Regulations”), Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) for the financial year ended March 31, 2020
i.e. Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement are appended hereto.

There has been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial position of the Company subsequent to the close of
the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and till the date of this report, except for the impact arising out of COVID-19, which is detailed
in this Report.

6. Subsidiary

The Company has two wholly owned subsidiaries and two step down subsidiaries as on March 31, 2020. There has been no material
change in the nature of the business of the subsidiaries.

(i)  Wholly Owned Subsidiaries:

a. Speciality Hospitality UK Limited was incorporated as a private limited company, limited by shares (bearing company number
10927982) on August 22, 2017, registered with The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales, having its registered office
at 134 Buckingham Palace Road, London, SW1W 9SA, United Kingdom.

b. Speciality Hospitality US, Inc. (bearing number — 803423900) was incorporated on September 19, 2019, which is registered
with Office of the Secretary of State of Texas, having its registered office at 6161 Savoy Drive, Suite 1000, Houston TX 77036.

(ii) Step Down Subsidiaries:

a. Caterland Hospitality Ltd. was incorporated on July 18, 2019, as a private limited company, limited by shares (bearing
company number 12109778) registered with The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales, having its registered office
at 134 Buckingham Palace Road, London, SW1W 9SA, United Kingdom.

b. Foodland Ventures, LLC was incorporated on October 7, 2019, (bearing number —803436901) which is registered with Office
of the Secretary of State of Texas, having its registered office at 9894 Bissonnet Street, Suit 638, Houston TX 77036.

During the year under review, a Joint Venture Agreement dated July 24, 2019 was entered into between Speciality Hospitality UK
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary (“WOS”) of the Company and Homage Ventures LLP, to setup, own and operate restaurant in
London, United Kingdom under Caterland Hospitality Ltd.

During the year under review, a Joint Venture Agreement dated January 10, 2020 was entered into between Speciality Hospitality
US, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary (WOS) of the Company and Associated Hospitality & Developers LLC, to setup, own and operate
restaurants in United States of America under Foodland Ventures LLC.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of your Company, its joint venture, WOS and step down subsidiaries, prepared in accordance
with the relevant accounting standards of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, duly audited by the Statutory Auditors, form
a part of the Annual Report and are reflected in the consolidated accounts.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements
of WOS and step down subsidiaries in Form AOC-1 is attached to the Financial Statements of your Company.

7. Joint Venture
Your Company has a joint venture company, Mainland China & Indigrill Restaurant LLC (erstwhile Mainland China Restaurant LLC) at
Doha, Qatar. The Consolidated Financial Statements of your Company and its joint venture company, prepared in accordance with the
relevant accounting standards of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, duly audited by the Statutory Auditors, form a part of
the Annual Report and are reflected in the consolidated accounts.
The partners of the joint venture company, in view of the losses incurred, discontinued operations of the Mainland China Restaurant
with effect from May 16, 2017. The Company is in the process of voluntary liquidation of the joint venture, Mainland China & Indigrill
Restaurant LLC (erstwhile Mainland China Restaurant LLC) at Doha, Qatar.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements
of joint venture company in Form AOC-1 is attached to the Financial Statements of your Company.

8. Awards and Recognition
Your Company’s brand initiatives have been recognized and appreciated across forums. During the year under review your Company
has won the following awards:

Name & Place of Restaurant Awards Won

Sigree, Anna Nagar, Chennai Rocheston — Distinguished Restaurant

Oh! Calcutta, Gurgaon Best Regional Cuisine Award by Eazydiner Foodie Awards

Riyasat, Kolkata Best Progressive Indian — Casual Dining (Times food and night life awards)
Riyasat, Kolkata Best Indian By The Telegraph

BARishh, Kolkata Best Debutant Lounge By The Telegraph

Cafe Mezzuna, Kolkata Best Italian in Premium Dine In by The Telegraph

Cafe Mezzuna, Kolkata Best Italian in Premium Dine In (Times food and night life awards)
Mainland China, Pune Best Chinese - (Times food and night life awards)
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